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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of
SVATANTRA MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Svatantra Microfin Private Limited
(*the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the yeer then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a frue and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash fiows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other imegularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made theraunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirernents and pian
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement,
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit svidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
intemal control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
said financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companias (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2018 (the “Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which fo the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act: and

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”. Our report express an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s intemal financial controls over financial reporting ; and
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our informafion and according to the explanations given to us;

I.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financiai
position;

Il.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

lll.  There is no amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm QR&Q No.: 121750WAN-100010
=

Madhukar Khandekar | ¢

PARTNER pecos™®

Membership No.13912

Place : Mumbal

Date: 292 JN 2018
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ANNEXURE-“A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date)

{i) (@) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulass, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assats.

{b) According to information and explanations given to us, the fixed assets have been
physically verified by the management according to the regular programme of periodical
verification in a phased manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

{c) According to information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties of the Company and accordingly, the requirements under Clause
3 (i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) Considering the nature of business, the Company does not have any inventory. in view of
this, paragraph 3 (i) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

()  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Parinerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the Paragraph 3 (i) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are
not applicabte to the Company.

(v}  According to information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities granted in respect of provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the
Act and accordingly, the requirements under Clause 3 (iv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

V) The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year from the public to which the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under apply.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
requirement for maintenance of cost records pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records
and audit} Rules, 2014 specified by the Central Government of India under Section 148 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year under audit.

(vi) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employee state insurance, income tax, service tax, goods and service tax, cess, and
any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed
amount payable in respect of provident fund, employee state insurance, income tax,
service tax, goods and service tax, cess, and any other statutory dues in amears of
outstanding statutosy dues as at 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable except Labour welfare fund of Rs. 690 which is
outstanding on the last day of the financial year for more than six months from the date
they became payable. As informed, statutory dues in the nature of sales tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues on account
of income tax, service tax, goods and service tax and ce igh _have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
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(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings to the banks and financial institutions. The Company
does not have any loans from government or by way of debentures.

(ix} According to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been
applied for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised any
money by way of initiat public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

) During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year except for instances of cash embezzlements by certain
employees of the Company aggregating to an amount of Rs. 1,157,028 and out of which,
an amount of Rs.1,129,368 has been recovered.

(xi) As the Company is Private Limited Company, provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule
V of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

{xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii)  According to the information and expianations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or parily convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the paragraph
3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
{ndia Act 1934, and the registration cerlificate has been obtained.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No: 121750WAV-100010

Q Iy X
ko=
Madhukar Khandekar

PARTNER
Membership No.13912

Piace : Mumbai
Date: 929 JUN 2018
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Svatantra Microfin
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financlai Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on, the intemal control over financial reparting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intemal controt stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india (ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
complsteness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemnal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemnal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
OF 8ITOr.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Chartered Accountants

Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's intemnal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to pemit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internat Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
intemal financial controls over financial reporting to further periods are subject to the risk that the
intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compfiance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controis
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the infternal control over financial reparting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No.; 121750WAN-100010

=

Madhukar Khandekar
PARTNER
Membership No. 13912
Place : Mumbai

Date : 272 JUN 2018
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Auditors’ Additional Report

The Board of Directors

Svatantra Microfin Private Limited
20th Floor, Sunshine Towers,
Senapati Bapat Marg,

Elphinston Road, Mumbai- 400013

We report that the statutory audit of Svatantra Microfin Private Limited was conducted by us
in pursuance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have annexed hereto a copy
of our Audit Report dated 22 June 2018 along with a copy of each of the audited Statement of
Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on 31 March
2018 and Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018 along with the documents declared by the
relevant Act to be part of, or annexed to, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Balance
Sheet.

in addition to the said Report, as required by the Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's
Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {‘The Directions’), issued by the Reserve Bank of india
('RBI'} vide notification No. PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 29 September 2016 pursuant to
the powers conferred in terms of Sub-Section (1A) of Section 45MA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, on the basis of the books of account and other relevant records examined by us
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report on Paragraphs 3 and 4
of Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as
under:

1. Para 3(A)

l. The Company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial Company as
defined under clause (i) of Section 45-}(c) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The
Company has obtained a Certificate of Registration numbered N-13.02038 from Mumbai
R.O. of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) dated 05 February 2013 for registration as a
"Non-Banking Financial Company — Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI)" as provided
in sub-section (1) of Sectian 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Registared Office:
308-306. Technopolis Kriowledge Park. Mahaksl Gaves Ruad
Anchert {E). Mumbai - 400 093, Indig. T +91 (22181971 5555
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Il. On the basis of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 audited by us
and as per Paragraph 5 of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016, we hereby report that the Company is entitled to continue to hold such Certificate
of Registration in terms of its financial asset fincome pattern as on 31 March 2018.

Hl. Based on the net owned fund requirement as laid down in Paragraph 52 of Master
Direction - Non Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, we hereby
report that the Company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement.

2. Para 3(B)

As indicated in Clause 1 above, since the Company has Certificate of Registration as “Non-
Banking Financial Company Not Accepting Public Deposils”, the matters referred to in Para
3(B) of the Directions are not applicable to the Company.

3. Para 3(C)

l. The Board of Directors has passed a resolution in the meeting of Board of Directors held
on 06 April 2017 for the non-acceptance of any public deposits.

ll. The Company has not accepted any Public Deposit during the year.

. The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition,
accounting standards, assets classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts
as applicable to it in terms of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions,
2018, in the preparation of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

IV. The Company being a Systemically Important Non- Deposit taking NBFC as defined in
Paragraph 3 (00¢) of the Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016,

a) The Capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to the RBI in form
NBS-7 has been correctly arived at and such ratio is in compliance with the
minimum capital to rigk asset ratio (CRAR’) prescribed by RBI. and

b) Presently there is no requirement of furnishing the annual statement of capital funds,
risk assets/exposures and risk assets ratio (NBS 7) to RBl. The Company has
furnished to the RBI, the statement of capital funds, risk assets/ exposures and risk
asset ratio (NBS-7) within the stipulated period.
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V. Based on the criteria set forth by the RBI in Paragraph 3(xix) of the Non-Banking
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, the Company has baen correctly
classified as NBFC-MFI as defined in the said Directions with reference to the business
carried on by it during the year ended 31 March 2018.

4. Para 3(D)

Since as per RBI, the Company is required to hold Certificate of Registration, the matters
referred to in Para 3(D) of the Directions are not applicabie to the Company.

This report is issued pursuant to our obligations under Non-banking Financial Companies
Auditors’ report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 to submit a report on additional matters as
stated in the Directions to the RBl and may not be suitable for any other purpose.
Accordingly, our report should not be quoted or referred to in any other document made
available to any other person or persons without our prior written consent.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No: 121750W / W-10

o=

{Madhukar Khandekar)
PARTNER
Membership No.: 13912

Mumbeai, Dated:22 JUN 20‘8



Svatantra Microfin Private Limited

Balance Shoot as at 31 March 2018

Particulars Eeat As at
No. 31 March 18 31 March 17
(Re.) (Re.)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funde
{a) Share capital 3 1,323,437, 500 1,058,750,000
(b} Reserves and surplus 4 (141,683.606) (39,325,298)
4,131,753,894 1,019,424,702
Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Long term borrowings 5 2,850,328,327 1,115,312,500
{b) Long term provisions g 7,427,701 10,195,584
2,857,756,028 1,125,508,084
Current Liabilities
{a)} Short-term borrowings 7 706,028,146 284,110,573
{b} Trade payables i 28,687,214 12,340,126
{c) Other current liabilities 9 1,046,408,039 287,636,268
{d) Short-term provisions 10 176,285,270 21,819,480
1,957,376,669 605,906,447
TOTAL 5,996,866,591 2,750,839,233
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
{i) Property, plant and equiptment 11A 26,569,674 18,750,111
{ii} Intangible assets 11B 16,573,632 8,250,614
(i) Capital work-inprogress 11C 183,500 2,448,375
43,306,806 29,449,100
(p) Long-term loans and advances 12 2,394,609,605 653,769,318
{c} Other nen- current assets 13 128,767 5,490,805
{d) Deferred tax asset (net) 14 64,456,882 17,978,657
2,459,193,254 677,238,580
Current Assels
{a) Cash and bank balances 15 53,321,358 47 423 652
{b) Shori-term loans and advances 16 3,341,764,548 1,922,965,097
(¢) Other current assets 17 99,300,585 73,762,504
3,494,3686,531 2,044 154,653
TOTAL 5,996,886,591 2,750,839,233
Summary of significant accounting policies F

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Finn's Reg. No.; 121750wv / W-100010
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{Madhukar Khandekar) 7y AN
Partner 'r.':g a‘aa ‘3’: \\
Membership no. 13912 (=] xS E]
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Place : Mumbai

Date : 2‘2 JUN 2[}1&

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
SVATANTRA MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

\v
| oL
Ananyashres Birla Vineet Chattree

DIRECTOR
DIN No. 06625036

n
Surinder Kumar Bhatia

COMPANY SECRETARY
Membershig No. 17227

DIRECTOR
DiIN No. 07962531

Place : Mumbai

Dale:22 []6 18



Svatantra Microfin Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

Note | For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars No. 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Rs.) (Rs.}
Income
Revenue from operations 18 729,480,790 431,568,326
Other income 19 15,757,985 7,471,950
Total revenue 745,238,775 439,040,276
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 20 261,620,996 173,672,490
Finance costs 21 264,444,653 159,078,829
Depreciatlon/amortisation expense 22 14,112,616 10,034,872
Other expenses 23 115,272,917 80,820,829
Contingent provision against standard assets, provision fornon- | 24 238,578,991 12,657,474
performing assets and write-off
Total expenses 854,030,173 436,064,294
Profit f (Loss) before tax {148,791,388) 2,976,982
Tax expenses
Current tax - {1,280,448)
MAT Credit entilement - 1,280,448
Deferred tax Income/(expenses) 46,478,225 (993,157}
Earlier year deferred tax benefit /{charge) - 18,971,614
Earlier year tax adjustment (45,135) (5,6852)
Profit / {Loss) after tax (102,358,308) 20,948,987
Earmings Fer Shara 25
Basic and diluted (0.97) 0.29
Nominal value per share 10 10
Summary of slgniflcant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's No 121750W / W-100010

{Madhukar handekar}

e

Ananyashree Birla

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
SVATANTRA MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

\é@%/
ineef Chattree

Partner
Membership no. 13912

Place : Mumbai

Date: 99 JUN 018

DIRECTCR
DIN No. 06625038

Surinder Kumar Bhatia
COMPANY SECRETARY
Membership No. 17227

Place : Mumbai

Data:22 UB 18

DIRECTOR
DIN No. 07952531



Svatantra Microfin Privats Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

Curvent Year Frevious Year
Particulara 201718 201817
(Rs.) (Rs.)

CASH FLOW FROM GPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit / (loss} before tax (148,791,398} 2,075,982
Adjustments for-
Depreciation/amortization expanse 14,112,616 10,034,872
Conlingent provision againel asset apd Provision for non-performing 147,013,649 12,557,359
assels
Porifolio loan written off 91,565,342 115
Interest incoma (777,361} {2,277.810}
Profil on sale of Poperty, planl and equiptmernt - {B0,000)
Profil on sale of current invesiments - (744,910}
Sundry balances writien back /off - {586,805}
Interest axpansas 247 240,839 134,490,852
Operating profit before working capital changes 350,363,687 159,368,655
Adjustments for working capital changes:

{Increase)/decreage in irade and other payables 20,563,681 12,771,728

{Increase)idecrease in irade and olher recelvables (3,278,562 695) (1,311,215 583)
Gash generabed from operations {2,096,635,327} {1,142,074,600)

Income taxes paid (fefund) (1,748 521) (1,259.520)

Netcash g ated fromi{utilsed in} operating activities {A} [2,898,383,548) (1,143,334,2308)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets including eapital work-in-progress {28,408,258) (14,987 B81)
Proceed on sale of fixed Asse 20,828 102,500
Interast income 2,300,483 2,791,802
{Purchase} fsale of invesiment (Net) - 744,810
Deposits with bank having original malurity of nnore than threa 16,438,838 48,008,395
months
Neat cash generated fromi{utiksed in} investing activities {B) (%,649,089) um,ai
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procseds from Issue of equity share capital 264 BET 500 858,750,000
Proceeds from iong term of bormawings 2,850,000,000 1,110,000,000
Repaymenis of long {erm of borrowings {348,7490,391} {749,353,140)
Proceed / (Repayment) of short term bomowings 346,915,573 234,110,573
Interes! paid (227,807,269) (130,424 572)
Net cash generated fromdjutilised in) financing activities {Cl 2,925,006,293 1,123,062,861
Net {decrease) / Increase In cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) 18,972,448 14,309,887
Cagh and cash equivalents atthe beginning of the year 36,348,952 21,939,385
Cash and cash eguivalents at the ond of the year 653,321,398 36,348,952

Naote:

1. The above Cash Flow Stalement has been prapared under the ‘Indirect Meihod™ as set out in the Accounting Stendard

{AS)-3 on "Cash Flcw Statemants” as nodified by Central Govemment of India_

2. Cash and Cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow slatemenl comprises cash an hand and cash at bank excluding

fooed deposit with orginal maturity of more than 1hree monihs.

Summasy of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fnancial statements

As per our report of even date sttached
FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accounlans
Firm's . No.2 121760W 1 W-1000
o & AS ,S‘\\

(muhun%é/

Partner cvaﬂe‘e f
Membership no. 13912 & l Coaunte? );

Place : Mumbai

Date : 22 JUN 20‘3

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
g TANTRA MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTOR

DIN No, 0652503& DIN No. 07862531

nﬁ‘/:x@
Suri umar Bhatia

COMPANY SECRETARY
Memberahip No. 17227

Flace : Mumbsi
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Company Information

Svatantra Microfin Private Limited (‘the Company') is a private limited company incorporaléd iﬁ India on 17
February 2012 under the Companies Act, 1956 having ite registered office at Mumbai. The Company is registered
with Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a "Non Banking Financial Company- Micro Finance Institution”.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis and in accordance
with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP’} in India in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the *Act) including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ruleg, 2014 and the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines to the extent
applicable io a Systemically Important Non- Deposit taking Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC-ND-S1} and Non-
Banking Finance Company- Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI). The financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupees rounded off to the nearest rupes.

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in
the Schedule Il to the Act. The Cash Flow Statement has bean prepared and presented as per the requirements of
the Accounting Standard {AS) 3 Cash Flow Statements. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the
Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 1l to the Act, are presented by
way of notes forming part of accounts along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified
Accounting Standards.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial staiements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in India
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affects the reported amounts of assets and
liabilitles and the disciosures of coniingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of
revenue and expenses for that year. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised appropriately.

Fixed assets and depreciation / amortisation expense

Property, ptant and equiptment

Property, plant and equiptment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of tangible fixed assets
comprises of the purchase price, taxes, duties, freight (net of discount and rebates) and any other directly
attributable expenditure of bringing the asseis to their working condition for their intended use,

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided on the basis of useful Iife of fixed assets specified by
Schedule  to the Companies Act, 2013.
Individual assets costing Rs. 5,000 or less are fully depreciated on pro-rata basis.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over a period of 5 years .

Intangible assets

Intangible assels are camied at cost of acquisation less amortisation. The cost of intangible asset comprises of
license fees and cost of implementation / system integration services. Intangible assets are recognized only if it is
probable. that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably.

Software is amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life or 5 years, whichever is lower.

Capital Work In progress
Fixed asset under construction / development and asset acquired but not ready for there intended use are
disclosed as capital work-in-progress,




Svatantra Microfin Private Limitad

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

24

2.5

28

2.7

2.8

Revenue recognition

a) interest income on portfolio loans is recognized on accrual basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
rate applicable except in the case of non-performing asseis (NPA's} where it is recognised, upon relisation, as per
prudential norms of RBI.

b} Loan processing fees income is recognised at the time of loan disbursed to the borrower.

¢) Interest income on deposits with banks is recognised on a time proportion accrual basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

dy All other income is recognized on an accrual basls, when there is no uncertainly in the ultimate
realization/collection.

Accounting for taxes on income:

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the
provislons of the Income Tax Act, 1861,

The deferred tax for timing differences between the book profits and tax profits for the year is accounted far using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as of the balance sheat date. Deferred tax
assets arising from timing differences are recognised to the extent there is a virtual/reasonable certainty that these
would be realised in future and are reviewed for the appropriateness of the respective carrying values at each
balance sheet date.

The Minimum Alernative Tax (MAT) credit is recegnized as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing avidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified period. In the year in which
the Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the
recommendations contained in guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entittement. The Company
reviews the same at each balance sheet date and wrltes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to
the extent there is ne longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during
the specified pariod.

Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on
which these investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments arg classifled as
long-term investments.

tong-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than tempaorary, in the
value of such investments, Cument investments are camied at lower of cost or fair value.

Praliminary expenses
Preliminary expenses are charged fo the statement of profit and loss in the year in which it is incurred,

Retirement benefits

i) Defined contribution plans:

The Company contributes to Employee's Provident Fund (a defined contribution plan) towards post employment
benefits, which is administered by the respective Govemment authorities and the Company has no further
obligation beyond making its contribution.

ii) Dafined benefits plans:

Gratuity

The Company has a Defined Benefit Plan namely Gratuity for all its employees. The liability for the defined benefit
plan of Gratuity is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an independent actuary at the year end,
which is calculated using projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in
the statement of profit and loss,

e
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Employeae leave encashment

The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The liability in respect
of unutilized leave balances is provided based on an actuarial valuation camied out by an indepandent actuary as
at year end which is calculated using projected unit credit method and charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Employee Stock Optlon Scheme ('ESOPF')

The Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Scheme. The Scheme provides that subject to
continued amployment with the Company, employees of the Company are granted an option to acquire equity
shares of the Company that may be exercised within a specified period. The Company follows the fair value
method for computing the compensation cost for ali options granted which will be amotiized over the vesting
period,

Measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based paymsnt schemes are done in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountanis of India.

The difference between the fair value of the stock option granted and the exercise price, if any, is expensed as
*Employee Compensation” over the period of vesting.

Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expenss in the statement of
profit and loss on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, processing fees and other cosis incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings. All borrowing costs are expensed in the period they ocour.

impairment of assats

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the management estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable
amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carylng amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance
sheet dafe there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflscted at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated
historical cost. '

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as result of a past event that probably requires
ah outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will
not, requires an ouiflow of resources, Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihcod of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisioning policy for loan porifalio

Agset clagsification Provisioning %
Standard assets 1
[Non performing assets
* Qverdue for more than 90 days but less than 180 days 50
* Qverdue for 180 days or more 100

Provision on standard asseis has been made in line with the NBFC-ND-NSI Prudential Norms.

The overall provision for portfolio loans are determined as prescribed in the NBFC-MFI Directions. These Directions
require the total provision for portfolio loans to be higher of (a} 1% of the cutstanding loan portfolio or (b) 50% of
the aggregate loan instalments which are cverdue for more than 90 days and less than 180 days and 100% of the
aggregate loan instalments for 180 days or more,

Such provision created in order to comply with the NBFC-MFI Directions is classified and disclesed in the Balance
Sheet as contingent provision for standard assets.

All loans which are overdue for 730 days or more and / or in the opinion of the mansgement, any amount which is
not recoverable are written off.
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Asset classification norms

Standard assets means the asset in respect of which, no default in repayment of principal or payment of interest is
perceived and which doas not disclogse any problem or carry more than normal risk attached to the business.

Non performing assets means an asset for which, interest/ principal has remained overdus for a period of 90 days
or more,

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share (‘EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year available for
the equity sharehclders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the
purpose of calculating diluted eamings ‘per share, net profit/(loss} after tax for the year awvailable for equity
shareholders by the weighted average numbar of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are anti-dilutive when their conversion to equity shares
would increase earnings per share from continuing ordinary activities or decrease loss per share from continuing
ordinary activities. The effects of anti-dilutive potential equity shares are ignored in calculating diluted earhings per
share.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and cash at bank
including fixed deposits with original maturify period of three months or less and short term highly liguid
investments with an original maturity of three months or loss.

&
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a)

b}

SHARE CAPITAL

. As at As at

Particulars 31-March-18 #-March-17
_{Rs) {Rs.)

Authorised .
140,000,000 (Previous year 110,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid 1,400,000,000 | 1,100,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up
132,343,750 (Previous year 105,875,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid 1,323,437,500 1,058,750,000

Total iqsued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

1,323,437,500

1,058,750,000 |

Reconciliation of number and amount of shares outstanding:

As at 31-March-18 As at 31-March-17
Particulars MNumber Rs. Number Rs.
Evquity Shares
Sharas outstanding at the beginning of the year 105,875,000 | 1,058,750,000 40,000,000 400,000,000
Shares issued during the yaar 26,468,750 254,687,500 65,875,000 858,750,000
Shares bought back during the vear - - - -
Sharas outstanding at the end of the year 132,343,760 | 1,323,437,500 105,875,000 | 1,058,750,000

Terms / rights attached to each class of ghares
Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
antitied to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the hoklers of equity shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢} Shareholders' holding more than 5% shares in the Company :-

As at 31-March-18 As at 31-March-17
Name of Shareholder No. of shares | % of Helding | No.ofshares | % of Holding
held held
Birla Group Holdings Private Limited 33,666,250 25.36% 20,560,000 19.41%
TGS Invesiment and Trade Private Limited 31,515,000 23.81% 31,515,000 28.77%
IGH Holdings Private Limited 28,451,562 19.99% 21,161,250 19.89%
Infocyber India Private Limited 23,845,000 18.09% 23,945,000 22.61%
Umang Commerciai Company Private Limited 16,865,938 12.75% 8,703,750 8.22%
Total 132,343,750 100.00% 105,875,000 100.060%
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4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

As at As at
Particulars 31-March-18 31-March-17
{Rs.) {Rs.)
Securities premium
As per last Balance Sheet 400,000 400,000
Closing Balance 400,000 400,000
Statuiory Reserve *
As per last Balance Sheet 4,415,382 225,585
Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss - 4,189,797
Closing Balance 4,415,382 4,415,382
Surplus/ {deficlt) in the statement of profit and loss ;
Opening balance {44,140,680) {60,809,870)
Profit / (loss) for the year (102,358,308} 20,948 987
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve - (4,188,797)
Closing Balance {146,498,988) {44,140,680)
Total (a+b+c) {141,683,606) (39,325,298)

*Statutory reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 ("the RBI Act"). In
terms of Saction 45 - IC of the RBI Act, a Non-Banking Finance Company is required to transfer an amount not less
than 20% of its net profit 1o a reserve fund before declaring any dividend. Appropriation from this reserve fund is

permitted onty for the purpose specifiad by the RBI.
5 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

As at As at
Particulars 31-March-18 31-March-17
(Rs.} (Rs.)
Secured
Term Loan
~from banks* 2,745,634,497 1,115.312,500
-from non banking financial company {NBFC) * 104,683,830 -
Total 2,850,328,327 1,115,312,500

* Secured by pari-passu first charge by way of hypothecation of all receivables of the Company, in the favour of
security trustes (in previeus year secured by pari-passu first charge by way of hypothecation of all receivables of the
Company, in the favour of security trustee and cash collateral in the range of 5§ % to 10% of the sanctioned amount in
the form of fixed deposits and interest accrued on such fixed deposits). Loans availed having tenure of 12 months to
60 months with a moratorium period of 2 months to 12 months, respectively and the same are repayable in monthly
and quarterly instalment starting after completion of moratorium period with inerest rate ranging from 8.35% to 10.40%
(previous year 10.40% to 12.50% ).

** Secured by pari-passu first charge by way of hypothecation of all racelvebles of the Company, in the favour of
security trustse. Loans availed having tenure of 12 months to 36 months with @ moratorium period of 3 months to 12
months and the same are repayable by monthly,quarterly and by way of bullet payment starting after comptetion of
meratorium period with inferest rate of 9.40% to 9.50% (previous year 10.10% ).

LONG TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at
Particulars 31-March-18 31 March-17
(Rs.) {Rs.)
Contingent provisions against standard assets (Refer note 46) - 6,394,471
Gratuity (Unfunded) 5,035,978 2,817,008
Leave encashment (Unfunded) 2,391,723 1,184,105
Total 7427,7H 10,195,584
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SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Asat - . As at
N Particulars 3M-March-18 3M-March-17
{Rs.} {Rs.})
Secured
Tem Loan
-from banks 29,999,231 -
~fram nan banking financial company (NBFC) 587,500,000 25,000,000
Cash credit from a bank * 88,526,915 269,110,573
Total 706,026,146 284,110,573
Refer note § above
* Secured by pari-passu first charge by way of hypothecation of all receivables. Interest rate of 9.30% to 10.00%
(previous year 9.40% to 9.50%).
TRADE PAYABLES
As at As at
Particulars I-March-18 31-March-17
(Rs.} {Rs.)
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 28,687,214 12,340,126
Total 28,667,214 12,340,126

The Company has not received any information from suppliers regarding their registration under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence information required to given in accordance with the said act,

is not ascertainable and not disclosed.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at As at
Particulars 31-March-18 31 -March-17
(Rs.) (Rs.}
Current maturities of long term borrowings- from banks (Refer note 5} 953,778,969 192,891,357
Current maturities of long term borrowings- from NBFC (Refer note 5) 45,306,170 75,000,000
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 28,285,148 8,851,598
Statutory dues 6,143,784 3,114,124
Employess dues payable 11,737,066 4,704,196
Creditor for capital goods 1,166,902 1,675,000
Book overdraft (since realised) - 1,409,993
Total 1,046,408,039 287,635,268
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at
Particulars J1-March-18 3MMarch-17
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Contingent provisions agalnst standard assets (Refer note 46) - 19,062,778
Provisions against Non-performing asset (Refer note 46) 172,470,598 :
Gratuity (Unfunded) 752,256 444 051
Leave encashment (Unfunded) 3,032,116 2,312,651
Total 176,255,270 21,819,480
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LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Ag at As at
Particulars 31-March-18 31-RarchA7
{Rs.} (Rs.)
Portfolio Loans - Joint llability group loans
Unsecured, considered good* (refer note 52) 2,386,188,691 638,236,386
Unsecured, considered doubtful™ {refer note 52) 905,769 210,747
Security deposits 1,699,857 7,244,745
Prepaid expenses 686 £,446,455
Capiial advances 2,226,840 -
Employee loans 288,947 -
MAT credit entitlement 1,280,448 1,280,448
Advance income tax 2,048,267 350,633
{net of provision for tax Rs. 1,280,448; previous year Rs, 1,285,170)
Total 2,394,609,605 853,769,318

* Represents standard assets in accordance with Company's asset classification norms policy (rafer nots 2.13)

** Represents non performing assats in accordance with Company's assel classification norms policy (refer note 2.13)

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at
Particulars 31-March-18 31-March-17
(Rs.} (Re.)
Other Bank balances
- In fixed deposit accounts with original maturity of more than 12 months 126,767 5:490,605
Total 126,767 5,490,605
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
As at As at
Particulars 31-March-18 M-March-17
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed business losses 3,318,520 3,464,470
Unabsorbed depreciation 3,664,305 3,864,411
Contingent provision against standard assets and provision for non- 53,810,920
performing assets 7,866,290
Preliminary expenses 2,414,117 2,249,804
Provision for retirement benefits 3,498,167 2,026 365
(A) 66,706,029 19,471,340
Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortisation charged for the financial raporting (2.249.147) (1,492,683)
(B} (2,249,147} (1,492,683)
Deferred tax asset (net) {A-B) 64,456,882 17,978,657

Considering the growth of the Company, it is expected to generate future taxable income with reasonable certainity,
accordingly the Company has recognised defemed {ax asset as per Accounting Standard {AS)- 22 " Accounting for

taxes on Income”.
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15  CASH AND BANK BALANCES

As at As at
Particulars - 31-March-18 31-March-17
(Rs.) (Rs.}
Cash and cash equivalenta
- Cash on hand 630,826 222,613
- Balances with banks
= In current account 52,640,388 38,076,339
- In fixed deposit accounts with original maturity of less than three 50,184 50,000
months )
Other Bank balances
- In fixed deposit accounts with maturity of more than 3 months less than ) 11,075,000
12 Months
Total 53,321,398 47,423,852
16  SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Az at As at
Particulars 31-March-18 31-March-17
{Rs.) {Rs.)
Portfolio Loans - Jolnt liabllity greup icans
Unsecurad, considered good* (Refer note 52) 3,110,957,722 1,205,108,694
Unsecured, considered doubtfu** {Refer note 52) 208,355,222 1,169,077
Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received 8,841,548 8,567,367
Prepaid expenses 5,030,514 5747776
Balance with government authorities 859,677 -
Security deposits 6,290,725 1,128,650
Employse loans 1,629,140 1,243,543
Total 3,341,764,548 1,922,955,097
17 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)
As at As at
Particulars 31-March-18 31-March-17
{Rs.) (Rs.}
Interest accrued but not due
- on portfolio loans 99,294,731 71,878,268
- on fixed deposits 5,854 1,523,122
Current maturities of long term loans and advances - Employee loans - - 361,114
Total 99,300,585 73,762,504
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS o :
. Current Previous
Particulars Year Year
{Rs.) (Rs.}
Inferest income on porifolio loans 672,447,891 407,008,463
Processing fees §7,0032,699 24,561,863
Total 729,480,790 431,568,326
OTHER INCOME
Particut: Currant Pravious
LSS Year Year
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Interast income on
- Bank deposits 569,829 2,182,130
- Staff loans 177,632 95,680
Commission 14,769,368 3,700,065
Profit on sals of current investments - 744,910
Interest on income tax - 16,700
Sundry balances writien back - 586,805
Miscellaneous Income 211,256 65,651
Profit on sale of assels - 80,000
Total 15,757,985 7,471,950
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Current Pravious
Particulars Year Year
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Salaries and allowances 224 511,854 148,552,823
Contribution to provident and other funds 18,312,762 12,257,371
Staff welfare expenses 18,796,380 11,722,296
Total 261,620,996 173,672,490
FINANCE COSTS
. Current Previous
Particulars Year Yoar
{Rs.) (Rs.)
Interest expenses 247 240,639 134,480,852
Other borrowing costs 17,203,581 24,581,748
Interest on delayed payment of TDS 233 6,028
264,444,653 159,078,629
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22 DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Current Previous
Particulars Year Year
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 9,792,063 7,583,929
Depreciation on intangible assets 4,320,553 2,450,943
Total 14,112,616 10,034,872
2} OTHER EXPENSES
Current Previous
Particulars Yoar Yoar
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Advertisement expenses 1,720,145 933,293
Rates and taxes 38,920 20,972
Rent 26,078,364 20,852,755
Communication expenses 8,028 495 4,983,423
Commission expenses - 17,000
Fravelling and conveyance expenses 35,852,671 21,589,032
Training expenses 693,125 707,960
Recruitment expenses 461,028 1,597,789
Insurance expenses 399,047 306,417
Printing and stationery 3,645,731 2,583,893
Legal and professional fees 15,907,149 7,876,715
Website development expenses 942,494 491,138
Electricity and water expenses 3,470,436 3,108,453
Membership and subscription 1,005,521 468,949
Repairs and maintenance - others 4,350,467 2,977,232
Share issue expenses 3,114,689 7,308,864
Bank charges 4,837,317 2,061,050
Miscellaneous expenses 2,789,937 2,218,283
Prior period items 612,381 -
Auditors’ remuneration
- Audit fees 976,000 683,125
- Tax audit fees 200,000 125,000
- For other services 150,000 108,386
Total 115,272,917 80,820,829

24 CONTINGENT PROVISION AGAINST STANDARD ASSETS, PROVISION FOR NON PERFORMING ASSETS

AND WRITE-OFF

Current Previous
Particuiars Year Year
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Contingent provision for standard assets (Refer note 46) - 12,557,359
Provision for non-performing assets 147,013,649 -
Portfolio loan written off 91,565,342 115
Total 238,578,991 12,667,474




Svatantra Microfin Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

25

26

EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the year For the year

_ ended ended
FariciNars 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
{Rs.) {Rs.)

Profit / (loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss (Rs.) (102,358,308) 20,948,987
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the year end
(Nos.) (A) 105,499,510 72,242,206
Basic eamings per share (Rs.) (0.87) 0.2¢
Number of shares under Employees stock options scheme (Nos.) 193,501 -
Number of Dilutive potential equity shares * (B) : -
Weighted average number of equity shares (including dilutive ESOP 105,499 510 )
shares) cutstanding at the year end (Nos.) [A]+[B] e
Diluted eamings per share (0.97) -
Nominal value of share (Rs.) 10 10

Note: The Company has allotted 26,468,750 (previous year 65,875,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each paid up, as

right shares and accordingly, earnings per share has been presented.

* In the financial year 2017-18, the potential equity had an anti dilutive impact and hence, not considered for

calcuiating diluted EPS.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS:

Particularg As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital - 2,406,692
account and not provided for (net of advances)
Total - 2,406,692

chartered

Mcwn\ams
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27 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

i)

Related partles and their ralationships

Investing party in respect of which the Company is an Associate;

{(a) TGS Investment and Trade Private Limited
(b) Infocyber India Private Limited { Upto 26 March 2018 )

(c) Birla Group Holdings Private Limited

Key management personnel
Kumar Mangalam Blria (Direcior)

MNeerja Birla (Director)
Ananyashree Birla (Director)

Vinest Chattree (w.e.f. 10 October 2017} (Additional Director)

Anujeet Varadkar {Chief Executive Officer)
Surinder Kumar Bhatia (Company Secretary)

The related party relationships have been determined on the basis of the requirements of the Accounting
Standard (AS) - 18 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ and the same have been relisd upon by tha auditors.

The relationships as mentioned above pertain o thase related parties with whom transactions have taken place
during the year, except where control exist, in which case the relationsh ips have been mentioned irrespactive of

transactions with the relatives.
Transactions with related parties:

Details of related party transactions are as follows:

For tha vear For the vear
. ended ended
Fitilars 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Equity shate capital Issued :-

Infocyber indla Private Limited - 109,000,000
TGS Investment and Trade Privaie Limitad - 219,000,000
Bifla Group Holdings Private Limited 13,016,250 102,000,000
Remuneration to Key managerlal parson:-

Anuleet Varadkar 3.542 462 3,151,824
Surinder Kumar Bhatia 1,840,768 1,601,940
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Consequent to the adoption of Accounting Standard 15 (AS 15 Revised 2005) on employee benefits, the following
disclosures have been made as required by the standards : .
Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the

al

b)

other than the contribution payable to the respective tfrusts.
Valuations in respect of Gratuity and Leave encashment have been carried out by independent actuary, as at the Balance

‘statement of profit and loss of the period when the contribution to the respective funds is due. There are no other obligations

Sheet date,
Defined contribution plan
Contributions %o defined confribution plans recognized as expense for the period are as under:

) Particulars Current year | Previous Year
Contribution fo provident fund 12,725,699 9,393,027
Defined benefit plan

Graluity and leave encashment liabilities is a defined bensfit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an astuarial

valuation made at the end of each financial year.

Gratuity Leave encashment
Baffieul {Unfunded) (Unfunded)
SeLiars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
CHANGE IN PRESENT VALUE OF
OBLIGATIONS
Present value of obilgation at beginning of ysar 3,081,059 1,335,193 3,496,756 1,421,652
Interest cost 209,228 108,815 205,954 101,257
Current service cost 3,347,569 1,443,766 1,794,614 1,679,868
Benefits Paid (4,327) - (971,458) (311,872
Past service cost - - -
Actuarial gain / (Ioss) obligations (825,295) 175,285 897,971 605,851
Present value of obligation at end of year 5,788,234 3,061,059 5,423,830 3,456,756
AMCUNT RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE
Opening net liability ' 3,061,059 1,335,193 3,498,758 1,424,852
Expenses recognise in profit and loss 2,731,502 1,725,866 2,898,538 2,386,975
Banefits paid directly by the employer  (4,327) - (971,456) (311,872
Net Liability recognised in balance sheet 5,788,234 3,081,058 5,423,839 3,496,756
EXPENSES RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF '
PROFIT & LOSS
Current service cost 3,347,560 1,443,766 1,794,614 1,679,868
Interest cost 209,228 108,815 205,954 101,257
Expected retum on plan asset - - -
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year (825,295) 175,285 897 971 605,881
Past service cost - -
Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss
included under ‘Employee benefits expenses' 2,731,502 1,725,866 2,898,539 2,386,975
{refer note 20)
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
i % p.a. % p.a. % p.a. % p.a.
1ALM tALM IALM IALM
Mortality rate (2008-08) {2006-08) (2006-08) {2006-08)
Uit Ui, Ult, Utt,
Discount rate (%) 7.44% 6.84% 7.44%, 6.84%
Inflation rate {%) 7.00% 5.00% 7.00% 5.00%
Rate of retumn (expected) on plan assets 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

[ enarteteds
A(‘,CD““““‘S

-
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EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN / SCHEME (ESOP/ ESOS)

On 10 October 2017, the Board of Directors approved the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP') scheme namely ESOP
2017, The disclosures related to the said scheme ag per the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based
Paymanis, issued by the The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAlY are as follows;

jortculers, Phase | Phase I Phase Il
Date of Grant 20-Nov-17 20-Nov-17 20-Nov-17
Date of Board Meeting, where ESOP weare §-Sep-17 8-Sep-17 8-8ep-17
approved
Date of sharsholders' approval 10-0ct-17 10-Oct-17 10-0¢k17
Vesting period 1 year from 2 year from 3 yeoar from
grant date grant date grant date
Exercise period Occuvence of  (Occurrence of  |Occurrence of
Liquidity event * |Liquidity event * |Liquidity event *
Number of options outstanding at the year end 63,885 63,885 65,821
Method of setlement Equity Equity Equity
Vesting conditions Continuous Continuous Continuous
sarvice sarvice service
Exercise Price per share (Rs.) 15.91 15.91 15.91
Total expenses recognised (Rs.) il Nil Nil
Stock compensation reserve (Liability)(Rs.) Nill NIl Nil
Stock Option Plans (Numbsr of Options)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year -
Grantad during the year 210,000
Forfeitad/Expired during the year 16,400
Exercised during the year -
Outstanding at the end of the year 193,59
Weighted average exercige price per shara(Rs.) 15,91

* Liquidity event -

a. Listing of equity shares on the recognized stock exchange
b. Strategic Sale event conferring a right of drag along to the Current Sharsholders
c. Offer of purchase of shares from Option Grantees having Vested Options made by an investor

d. Cash Seltlement or Buy-back event whereby the Company makes an offer for settlement of the Vested Options with the
Oplion Grantee or purchase Shares undarlying Vested Options.

The Compeny has adopted the intrinsic value methed as permitted by the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employse
Share Based Payment issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla for measuring the cost of stock options

granted.

The Company's net profit and samings per share would have been as under, had the compensation cost for employses’
stack options been recognized based on the fair value at the date of grant in accordance with Black Scholes model.

As at As at

Farticuidrs 31/03/2018 311032017
Profit after tax (102,358,308) -
Less: Additional Employee Stock cost as per fair value method 441,726 -
Profit after taxation as per Fair value method {102,800,034) -
Basic Earning per share [EPS]
Number of shares 105,499,510 72,242 206
Basic EPS (in Rs.} {0.97) 0.29
Diluted Eaming per share {EPS]
Number of shares 105,493,510 72,242,208
Add: Number of Dilutive potential equlty shares™ - -
Totat No. of share for caleulating Diluted EPS 105,499,510 72,242,206
Diluted EPS (in Rs.) (0.97) 0.20

* In the financial year 2017-18, the potential equity had an anti dilutive impact and hence, not consldered for caleulating

diluted EPS.
The following assumptions were ussd for calculation of fair value of grants:
Particulars Phase | Phase Il Phase Il
Risk Free Interast rate 6.62% 8.77% 6.90%
Expected life of option {years}) 3.50 4.51 £.51
Expected volatility 0.01% 0.01% 0.01%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
—
/{3 A\
Y, \
( wi| Chartereq
L Atoountants
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31

2

33

36

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in a single reportabla segment i.e. financing, which has similar risks and returns for the purpose of
AS 17 on 'Segment Reporting’ specified under Sectlon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with ruls 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.

LEASES
The Company has entered into the oparating lease for office premises.
Future minimum lease payments under non- cancellable operating lease are as follows:

Ag at As at
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Re.) (Rsz.)
Payable not later than one year 1,780,333 2,262,750
Payable later than one year and not later than five years - 1,690,777

The amount of minimum lease payments with respect to the above lease recognised In the statement of profit and loss for
the year is Rs. 26,078,364 (previous year Rs. 20,652,755). Above disclosure is for leases entered after 1 April 2001, as per
Accounting Standard (AS)- 19 'Leases’.

The following table sets out the disciosure as required by the nofification no. Master Diraction DNBR. PD.
008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1 September 2016 (as amended up to 31 May 2018) issued by REI.

Capital

Particulars Current year Previous Year
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
iy CRAR (%) 19.08 37.53
i} CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 18.73 36.58
iii) CRAR - Tier Il capital (%) 1.25 0.95
iv} Amount of suberdinated debt raised as Tier-ll capital - - -
v) Amount raised by issue of Pampatual Debt Instrumernis - -

INVESTMENTS
There are no investments during the current and previous year.

DERIVATIVES
The Company has no transactions / exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year.
The Cempany has no unhedged foraign cumency exposure as on 31 March 2018 and 31 March 201 7.

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SECURITISATION
The Company did not have any transactions relating to Securitisation during the current and pravious year.

DETAILS OF NON-PERFORMING FINANCIAL ASSETS PURCHASED / SOLD
The Company has not purchased / sold non-performing financiat assets in the current and previous year.
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421

42.2

42.3

42.4

42.5

42.6

42.7

42.8

EXPOSURES

Exposures to Real Estate Sector
The Company has no exposure to the real estate directly or indirectly in the current and previous year,

Exposures to Capltal Market
The Company has no exposure to the capital market directly or indirectly in the current and previous year.

DETAILS OF FINANCING OF PARENT COMPANY PRODUCTS
The disclosure is not applicable as the Company does not have any holding/parent Company.

DETAILS OF SINGLE BORROWER LIMIT {SBL} / GROUP BORROWER LIMIT (GBL) EXCEEDED BY THE
NBFC

Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during
the year by the Company.,

UNSECURED ADVANCES
Refer "Note 12" and "Note 16" of Financial statements.

MISCELLANEOUS

Reg'stration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company is registered with the following other financial sector reguiators:
(i) Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Disclosure of Penaities Imposed by RBI and other regulators
No penalty imposed by RBI and other reguiators during the current and previcus year.

Related Party Transactions
{) All materiat transactions with related parties are disclosed in "Note 27" of the Financial Statements

(i} The Company has the policy on dealing with Related party Transactions and it is disclosed on its website
www.svatantramicrofin.com.

Ratings assigned during the year
During the current year, the credit rating agencies have assigned the following credit ratings to the Company:

Particulars Current Rating Previous rating
a) MF1 Grading- M2 (ICRA) M3+ (ICRA)
b} Bank loan rating ICRA A-(stable} ' ICRA A-{stable)

During the year, there are no migration of above mentioned ratings.

Remuneration of Directors .
During the year, the Company has not paid any remuneration to it's directors.

Net Profit or Loss for the year, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no prior period items and change in accounting policies except as reported in the Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition
There are no such circumstances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resolution of
significant uncertainties.

Accounting Standard 21 -Consolidated Financial Statements {CFS)
The Company does not have any subsidiary company and hence, the CFS is not applicable.
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431

43.2

43.3
43.3 (a)

43.3 (b)

43.3 (¢)

43.3 (d)

43.3 (e)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
Provisions and Contingencies

{Rs. In Crores)

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Current Year Previous Year

Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

{i) Provisions for depreciation on Investment Nil Nil

{ii) Provision towards NPA 14.70 -

(i) Provision made towards Income tax (Including Deferred tax and 464 1.80
Earlier period tax adjustmeants)

(iv) Other Provislon and Contingencies (Employee Banefits) 0.56 0.41

{v) Provision for Standard Assets - 1.26

Draw Down from Reserves

There have been no drawdown from Reserves during the current and pravious year.

Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs) Amtin Crores
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors Not Applicable
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors 1o Total Deposits of the|  Not Applicable
NBFC
Concentration of Advances Amtin Crores
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 0.09
Percentage of Advances to twanty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the 0.02%
NBFC
Concentration of Exposures Amtin Crores
Total Exposure to twenty largest bomowers / customers 0.00
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total 0.02%
BExposure of the NBFC on borrowers / customers
Concentration of NPAs Amtin Crores
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 0.01
Sector-wise NPAs

Sector % of NPAs to Total

Advances in that
Sector

Agriculture & allied activities 6.95%
MSME 1.32%
Corporate borrowers -
Services 8.00%
Unsecured personal loans 0.73%
Auto Loans -

Other personal Loans
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434 Movement of NPAs

{Rs In Croras)

Particulars As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2018 2017
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.66% 0.05%
(i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance 0.14 0.04
(b) Additions during the year 29.95 0.10
(c) Reduction/write off during the year 9.16 -
(d) Closing balance 20.93 0.14
(i) Movement of NPAs (Net)
{a) Opening balance Q.14 0.04
(b) Additions during the year 3.54 0.10
() Reductions/write off during the year - -
{d) Closing balance .68 0.14
{iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on
standard assets)
{a) Opening balance - -
(b) Additions during the year * 28.41 -
(c) Reductionfwrite off during the year 9.16 -
{d} Closing balance 17.25 -
* includes opening contingent provision on standard assets Rs.2.55 crores.
43.5 Overseas Assets
During the year, there are no overseas assets in the Company.
43.6 Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
During the year, there are no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Company.
43.7 Disclosure of Complaints - Customer Complaints

Particulars As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2018 2017
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
No. of complaints received during the year 11 11
No. of complaints radressed during the year 11 11
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - -
44  NET INTEREST MARGIN (NIM)
Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended, March 31, | ended, March 31,
2018 2017
Average Interest {a) 18.35% 20.90%
Average effective cost of borrowing {b) 9.45% 12.21%
Net Interest Margin (a-b) 8.90% 8.69%
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48

49
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In the opinion of the management, the current asssts, non-current assets have a value on raalization in the ordinary course of
business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate
and not in excess of the amount reasonably stated.

The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of Indla (RBI) as a "Non Banking Financial Company- Micro Finence Institution®
vide Certificate of Registration dated February 05, 2013,

“In terms para 2 {xi} (b) of the Master Diraction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as nolified vide notificetion no. Master Direction DNBR. FD.
008/03.10.119/201€-17 dated Sept 1, 2016, (as amended up to 31 May 2018) a Micro Finance Institution (MF1) is required to have not
less than 85% of its 'Net Assets' in tha nature of "Qualifying Assets’. As at March 31, 2018, the Company Is in compliance with this
condition as its "Qualifying Assets’ is not less than 85% of is 'Net Assets'.

During the current financial year, the Company has maintained an aggregate margin cap of not more than 10% on Ipans disbursed by
it .

The disclosure required in terms of paragraph 18 of Chapter IV - Capital Requirements under Section 1l - Prudential 1ssues of Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018 is given in "Annexuras I

During the previous year ended March 31, 2017, the Company re-classifiad its porifolio assets by deferring the classification of an
exisling standard asset as non performing asset (NFA) as per RBI vide its notification no. DBR.No.BP.BC.37/21.04.048/2016-17 dated
November 21, 2016 providing an additional 60 days for recognition of a loan account as NPA and this applied to all dues payable
betwean November 1, 2016 and December 31, 2018. Furthar, an additional 30 days was provided in addition to 80 days and also to
defer the down grade of an account that was standard as on November 1, 2016, but would have become NPA for any reason dwing
the period November 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016, by 90 days from the date of such downgrade vide its notification
DBER.N¢.BP.BC 49/21.04.048/2016-17 dated December 28, 2018. Accordingly, the Company had delayed in classification of non-
performing asset.

Frevious years figures have heen re-arranged or re-grouped wherever considered necessary 1o conform to the cument years
presantation.

Signature 1 ta 53
As per our report of even date attached

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
Chartered Accountants SVATANTRA MICRQFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

Firm's Reg. No.: 121750W / W-100010 xb
el o W
m e \1\."'“
{(Madhukar Khandskar) ered Ana hree Bida eet Chatiree
Partner s DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Membership no, 13912 DIN No. 06625036 : DIN No. 07962531
‘l%
Suﬁnaer umar Bhatia
COMPANY SECRETARY

Membership No. 17227

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : ‘2.2 JUN 20‘\3 Dale22 UB ,IB



"Annexure I

Svatantra Microfin Private Limited

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non deposit taking non banking financial company aa on 31 March 2013
Disclosure in terms of Paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Campany - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposlt taking Company (Reserve Bank) Divections, 2016

Particulars

(Amount Rupees in Lakhs)

Liabilities side

(1)

Loana and advances availed by the non-
banking financial company inclusive of
interast aceruad thereon but not paid

Amount outstanding| Amount Overdue

{a) |Debentures

Secured

Nil Nil

Unsecured

{Other than falling within the meaning
of public deposits*)

Nil Nil

(b) |Deferred credits

Nil Nil

{c} |Term loans

44,951.98 Nil

inter -
borrowings

corporate  loans  and

(d)

Nil Nil

{e} |Commercial Paper

Nil Nil

{f) |Public Deposits*

Nil Nil

| (@) [Cther Loans: Cash Credit

885.27 Nil

*Refer note no. 1 below

@

Break-up of {1{f) above (Outstanding
public deposits inclusive of interest
accrued thereon but not paid) :

{a) |Inthe form of Unsecured debentures

il il

In the form of parlly secured
debentures i.e. debenfures where
there is a shortfall in the value of

G

Nil Nil

(c) |Other public deposits

il Nil

* Please see Note 1 below

Asset sido

Amount cutstanding

{3}

Break up of loans and advantes including
bills receivables other than those
included in (4) below

{a) Secured

(k) Unsecured

57,064.17

(4}

Break up of leased assets and stock on
hire and hypothecation loans counting
towards AFC activitias

(i} |Lease assetsincluding lease rentals
under sundry debtors :

(a) Financial lease

Not applicable

(b) Operating lease

Not applicable

(liy |Stock on the hire including hire

charges under sundry debiors :

(a) Asgets on hirg

Mot applicable

(b) Repossessed assets

Not applicable

{iii) |Other loans counting fowards AFC

activities

{a) Loans where assels have been
repossessed

Not applicable

(b) Loans other than (a) above

Not applicable

Charterad
- A¢tountants




Svatantra Microfin Private Limitad

“"Annexure I"

I
(5) |Break up of investments Amount outstanding
Current investments
1 |Quoted
(i) Shares
(@) Equity Nil
(b) Preferanca Nil
(i) Debentures and bonds Nil
(iil) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Govemment securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil
2 |Unguoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nil
(ii) Cebenturas and honds Nil
(iif) Upits of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil
Long term investments
1 |Quoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nit
(ii) Debentures and bonds Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Govermment securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil
2 |Unquoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity Nil
(b) Praference Nil
(#l) Debentures and bonds Nil
(i) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil
{6) |Borrowers group wise classification of financed as in (3) and (4) above:
Please see Note 2 below
Category Amount Net of Provisions
1 |Related parlies Secu Unsecured Total
(a) |Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil
(b) [Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil
{c) |Ofher related parties Nii Nil Nil
2 |Other than related parties Nil 57,064.17 57,064.17
Total Nil 67,064.17 57,064.17

Chartered
Atcountants

{




"Annexure |"

Svatantra Microfin Private Limited

™

investor Group Wise classification of all investments {current and long term) in shares
and gecurities (both quoted and unquoted):
Please see note 3 below

Category Amount outstanding
Market valuaf braak | Book value (net of
up of fair value or provision)
NAV
1 |Related parties**
(a) |Subsidiaries _Nil Nil
(b) |Companies in tha same group Nil Nil
(c) |Other related parties Nil Nil
2 |Other than related parties Nil I NIl
Total Nil Nil
* A5 per Accounting Standard of ICAI (Refer note ne. 3 below)
{8) |Other information
Sr. Particulars As at 31.3.2018
No. Rupees
(i) _|Gross non-performing assels
(a) |Relatad parties Nil
(b) |Other than related parties 2,092.61
(ii) |Netnon-performing asseis
(a) |Related parties Nil
(b) | Gther than related parties 367.90
(ii) |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts Nil
Notes:
1. As definad in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.
2. Provisioning noms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.
3. All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for valuation of investments

and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of dabt. Howaver, market value in respect of quoted
investments and break up / fair value { NAV in respect of unquoted investments shall be disclosed irrespactive of
whether they are classified as long term or current in (5) above.

FOR AND ON BEHALF CF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
SVATANTRA MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

v ¢ ARE
J \$ Oy~
Ananyashree Birla ineet Chattree

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN No. 06625036 DIN No. 07962531
Surinder Kuprdr Bhatia

COMPANY SECRETARY

Membership No. 17227

Place: Mumbai

Dated:22 06 19
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Seventh Annual Report on the

business and operations of the Company and the accounts for the financial year ended
March 31, 2018,

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The summary of the Financial Results of the Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 is

as follows:
Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS 31" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2017
Income
Revenue from eperation 729,480,790 431,568,326

Other Income
Less: Total Expenditure

894,030,173

Profit / Loss Before Exceptional Items,
Extraordinary Items and Tax
Exceptional Item - -

Extraordinary Item

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (148,791,398)
Less: Current Tax
MAT Credit Entitlement - 1,280,448
Less: Deferred tax income/Expenses
Earlier Year deferred tax benefit/(Charge) - 18,971,814
Earlier Year tax adjustment
Profit/Loss for the year (102,358,308) 20,948 987
i|Page
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2. OPERATIONS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK AND STATE OF COMPANY'’S
AFFAIRS:

During the year under review, the Company has eamed a total Income of
Rs. 74,52,38,775/- (Rupees Seventy Four Crores Fifty Two Lacs Thirty Eight Thousand
Seven Hundred and Seventy Five Only) and incurred a Net Loss of Rs. 10,23,58,308/-
(Rupees Ten Crores Twenty Three Lacs Fifty Ei ght Thousand Three Hundred and Eight
Only), as against a Net Profit of Rs. 2,09,48,987/- {Rupees Two Crores Nine Lacs Forty
Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Eighty Seven Only) in the Financial Year 2016-17.

3. DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND:

In view of planned business growth and in order to conserve resources, your Directors do
not propose and recommend any dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company, for the
year under review.,

4. RESERVES:

During the year under review, no amount was transferred to Statutory Reserve under the
head “Reserve & Surplus.”

S. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE
YEAR/STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS:

The Company is engaged in the business of Microfinance.

6. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

There was no change in the nature of business during the year under review.

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO
WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:;

There are no material changes or commitments, which have occurred after the closure of
the Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2017-18 till the date of this Report, that
affect the financial position of the Company in any adverse way.
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S. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE

REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING

CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE;:

There were no significant or material orders passed by any Courts or Regulators or
Tribunals during the Financial Year 2017-18 that, in the opinion of the Board, have an
impact on the going concern status and the operations of the Company in the future.

9. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associate Companies as on
date of Balance Sheet and the date of Report.

10. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

a. Deposits:
The Company has been granted license under Segment of non-deposit taking
NBFC-MFT, accordingly the Company cannot accept deposits within the meaning
of Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 1998,
Accordingly, the company has neither accepted public deposits during the
Financial Year nor would accept any public deposits during the Current Financial
Year 2018-2019.
b. Sweat Equity Shares issued during the Year:
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the Financial Year
under review.
c. Issue of Shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP):
The Company has a stock option plan under *Svatantra Microfin Employee Stock
Options Plan 2017 (“ESOP 2017} for its employees. As on March 31, 2018, the
following stock option grants were in operation:
Number of options granted during the year 2,10,000
Number of options vested during the year Nil
Number of options exercised during the year Nil
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Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option Nil
during the year

Options lapsed during the year 16,409
Exercise price Rs. 15.91
Variation of terms of options Nil
Money realized by exercise of options Nil
Total number of options in force 1,93,591

Employee wise details of the options granted to:

i. Key Managerial Personnel -
Name Designation Options Granted Exercise Price
Mr. Anujeet | Chief Executive 25036 Rs. 15.91
Varadkar Officer (CEQ)
Mr. Surinder Kumar | Company Secretary 13909 Rs. 15.91
Bhatia (CS)
ii. Any employee who receives a grant of option in any one year of option

amounting to 5% or more of options granted during that year —

In the Financial Year 2017-18

Name of Employee

No. of options granted

Mr. Anujeet Varadkar 25036
Ms. Vrushali Mahajan 16690
Ms. Kranti Sety 13909
Mr. Kandarp Gupta 16691
Mr. Sahil Mehta 16691
Mr. Pranay Singh 10293
Mr. B. B. Vasudev Rao 13909
Mr, Surinder Kumar Bhatia 13909
Mr. Umang Shah 11127
Mr. Lolup Swain 13909
Mr, Mahesh Surkante 13909
Mr. Pankaj Aundhkar 16691

iii.

and conversions) of the company at the time of grant

Employees who were granted options during any one year, equal to or
exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants

In the Financial Year 2017-18

Name of Employee

No. of options granted




1L

12.

13.

14.

d. Details of Frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143 (12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 during the Financial Year:

During the year under review, no frauds were reported by the Statutory Auditors,
requiring intimation under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
Company and therefore no details are required to be disclosed under Section
134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF _ _WOMAN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company is in compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and has a Prevention of Sexual
Harassment Policy in place. All the employees of the company are covered under this
policy. No complaints in this regard were received during the financial year 2017-18.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING COST RECORDS:

The Central Government has not spectfied the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the products of the Company, as such
matntenance of cost records is not applicable for the company.

COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE LAWS AND SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Board of Directors hereby declare that the Company is in compliance of the
provisions of Secretarial Standard-1 (“Board Meetings™) and Secretarial Standard — 2
("General Meetings™) issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and
notified by the MCA under Section | 18(10) of the Companies Act, 201 3, for all the Board
and General Meetings of the Company held during the Financial Year 2017-18 and the
Securities Law, RBI Act and other laws as applicable to the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

In terms of the Provisions of Section 139 and 141 read with Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, “M/s. Suresh Surana & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants” [Firm
Registration No. 121750W/W-10001 0], were appointed in the Annual general Meeting of
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the Company held on 30" September, 2015 as Statutory Auditors of the company to hold
office for a term of five years until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be
held in vear 2020.

15. AUDITOR’S REPORTS:

M/s. Suresh Surana & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants {Firm Registration No.
121750W/W-100010], Statutory Auditors for the company who conducted the audit for
the financial year 2017-2018 have submitted their report. The Notes on the Financial
Statements refer to the report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments.

The Auditor’s Report is unmodified and does not contain any qualifications, reservations
or adverse remarks.

16. SHARE CAPITAL.:

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on 3[% March, 2018 is
Rs. 140,00,00,000/- (One Hundred Forty Crores) as against Rs. 110,00,00,000/- (One
Hundred Ten Crores) as on 31 March, 2017.

The paid up capital of the Company as on 31% March, 2018 is Rs. 1,32,34,37,500/- (One
Hundred Thirty Two Crores Thirty Four Lacs Thirty Seven Thousand Five Hundred)
divided into 13,23,43,750 (Thirteen Crores Twenty Three Lacs Forty Three Thousand
Seven Hundred Fifty) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

17. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant 1o Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended
from time to time, Annual Return has been placed on the website of the company at
http://svatantramicrofin.com/pdf/MGT-9_Annual Retwrn.pdf.

18. CONSERVATION _OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo are as follows:
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Conservation of energy, Technology absorption:

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technolog
absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken
by the company during the year under review.

Foreign exchange earnings and Qutgo:

The Company neither had any foreign exchange earnings nor any outgo during the
year under review.

19.  DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

a.

7|Page

Composition of Board of Directors:

The Board of the Company is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 149
of the Companies Act, 2013 with four (4) directors as on 3 1% March, 2018 as well
as on date of this report, as mentioned below:

Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla - Director
Mrs. Neerja Birla - Director
Ms. Ananyashree Birla - Chairperson & Director

Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree Additional Director

All the directors of the Company has diversified experience and specialized
knowledge in various areas relevant to the Company.

Changes in the Composition of Board of Directors:

During the year under review, Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree. (DIN: 07962531) has
been appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of the Company with effect
from 10" October, 2017.

Key Managerial Personnel:

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel as on 3 1% March, 2018 as well
as on date of this report:

Mr. Anujeet Varadkar. - Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Surinder Kumar Bhatia. - Company Secretary.



20, NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the financial year ended 31+ March, 2018, 9 (Nine) Meetings of the Board of
Directors of the Company were held. The attendance of the Board of Directors in these

Meetings were as follows:

Sr. No. of the Board Date of the Board No. of Directors
No. Meeting Meeting Present
1. 1/2017-2018 06/04/2017 3

2. 2/2017-2018 28/06/2017 2

3. 3/2017-2018 02/08/2017 2

4. 4/2017-2018 01/09/2017 2

5. 5/2017-2018 08/09/2017 3

6 6/2017-2018 10/10/2017 2

7 7/2017-2018 22/1172017 3

8 8/2017-2018 05/01/2018 3

9 9/2017-2018 26/03/2018 3

Name of Directors

No of Board Meetings during FY 2017-18

Held Eligible to attend Attended
Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla 9 9 2
Mrs. Neerja Birla 9 9 9
Ms. Ananyashree Birla 9 9 9
Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chatiree 9 3 3

21.  PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR _INVESTMENTS UNDER

SECTION 186:

The Company has not made any investment(s) and provided guarantee(s) as covered under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Moreover, the Provisions of Section 186(11) and 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013
requiring disclosure of particulars of the loan given, investments made and guarantee
given or securities provided are not applicable to the company.
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22,

23.

24.

25,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES:

All contract(s) / arrangement(s) / transaction(s) entered into by your Company with its
related parties, during the year under review. were in the ordinary course of business of
the Company, and on an arm’s length basis; and not material, as per the provisions of
Section 188(1) of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the C ompanies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company since the Company does not meet the criteria
spectfied under Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement clause {¢) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures:

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the Provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and Operating

eftectively,

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS
AND EMPLOYEES:

Your Company has an effective Vigil Mechanism system which is embedded in its Code
of Conduct. The Code of Conduct of your Company serves as a guide for daily business
interactions, reflecting your Company’s standard for appropriate behavior and living
Corporate Values. The Code of Conduct applies to all Svatantra’s People, including
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26.

27.

28.

29,

30.

Directors, Officers, and all employees of the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented
in Annexure I, which is a part of this report.

CREDIT RATING:

Details of the Credit Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings, if
any during the Financial Year 2017- 2018 are disclosed in Note 42.4 to the Financial
Statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a board risk management
commitiee to frame, implement, and monitor the risk management plan for the Company.
The committee will be responsible for reviewing the risk management plan, ensuring its
effectiveness and verifying adherence to various risk parameters. The Company’s Risk
Management strategy is based on clear understanding of various risks, disciplined risk
assessment and continuous monitoring. The Risk Management Committee reviews
various risks with which the organization is exposed including Credit Risk, Interest Rate
Risk, Liquidity Risk and Operational Risk. The development and implementation of risk
management policy has been covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis in
Annexure I, which is a part of this report,

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has adequate internal controls and processes in place with respect to its
operations, which provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the preparation
of financial statements and financial reporting as also functioning of other operations. The
Company is following an effective internal control system commensurate with its size and
operations. These controls and processes are driven through various policies and
procedures. In addition to this the work process is designed in such a way that process of
internal check is ensured at all levels.

It also ensures the adoption of all policies & procedures for orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s Policy, the safeguarding of its
assets, prevention and detection of fraud & error, the accuracy & completeness of the
accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

RBI GUIDELINES:

The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a NBFC-MFI within the
provisions of the NBFC (Reserve Bank of India) Directions, 1998. The Company
continues to comply with all the requirements prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India
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as applicable to it.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their deep and sincere gratitude to the
Borrowers, Banks, Financial Institutions, Investors, and Employees for their continued
assistance, support, confidence and patronage, as well as to the Reserve Bank of India, the
Government of India and Regulatory Authorities for their cooperation, support and
guidance.

(CHAIRPERSON)
DIN: 06625036

Place: Mumbai
Date: 31.08.2018
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ANNUXURE 1

MANAGEMENT AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS REPORT
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Company overview:

In a changing and often challenging operating environment, during the financial year 2017-18,
the Company made good progress against its key strategic objectives during the year. The
Company continued to grow and diversify in new geographies, invest on capacity building,
building a strong team and promoted to deal in cash less transactions.

FY 17-18 for Svatantra:
The portfolio of the company stood at Rs. 570.7 Crores as on 31 March, 2018.

The financial performance of the company was good during FY 2017-18 despite considerable
challenges posed by demonetization and transition.

Company outreach;
The company, as on March 31, 2018 was operating in 8 States covering 73 districts with 130
branches across the country,

Funding & Capital Raising:

The company has raised funds through various sources during the financial year 2017-18. Out of
the total funds raised of Rs. 364.5 Crores during the year, Rs. 361.5 Crores were raised through
Term Loan and Rs. 3 Crores were raised through Cash Credit. The Net worth of the company as
on March 31, 2018 stood at Rs. 1,18,17,53,894/-.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The growth of the Company is subject to opportunities and threats as are applicable to the industry
from time to time.

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The details of financial performance of the Company are appearing in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018,

OUTLOOK

Roadmap for FY 2018-19

The focus of the company during the financial year 2018- 19 would be in finding new ways to
connect with its clients, increasing focus on automation, Data analytics and learmning &
development.
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RISK AND CONCERNS

The Board of Directors stands at the apex of the governance, supporting the risk management
framework. The Board oversees the implementation of the Risk Management Plan principally
through the Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC).

The Company being involved in business of lending is subject to multiple risks i.e. Credit risk.
Operational risk, Liquidity risk, and Regulatory risk. The Risk Management framework of the
company tends to reduce the risks which might result in compromising the organizational
strength.

The Board of the company comprises of professional directors with relevant experience who are
well versed to understand the risks specific to the company. The company has put in adequate
checks by complying with the regulations framed by RBI which are applicable on the company.
It also has an effective risk management department which is bound to work in an effective
manner mn order to mitigate risks.

Whereas each department focuses on its specific area of activity, the risk management department
operates in cooperation with all other departments, utilizing all significant information sourced
by the other departments in order to manage risks.

The company is also regulated by Reserve Bank of India which has stipulated certain regulations
to be followed by each and every NBFC.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The internal control systems of the company are designed to ensure that all assets of the company
are safeguarded and protected against any loss and be in line with the nature of its business and
the size of operations.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

There has been a significant rise in the operations of the company during the year. The company
has diversified its operations as on March 3 1, 2018 in 8 states with 130 branches in 73 districts.

The number of customers has also increased to 2,76,780 as compared to 1,68,238 in the previous
year. This has resulted in increase in the revenue of the company during the year 2017-18. Further
details related to the operational performance can be seen in the Director’s Report of the company.
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL
RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEGPLE EMPLOYED

Human Resource

The company is cognizant of the importance of human capital in a fast evolving and high
growth industry like the one it operates in. It also strives hard to retain its experienced team rich
in domain expertise as it recognizes their importance in the growth of the Company. There has
been a significant increase in the number of branches of the company during the year which has
resulted in increase in the number of employees as on March 31, 2018 at 1,233 as compared to
728 in the previous year.

The company also has a strong culture of celebrations. All occasions are celebrated with great
zeal and excitement at the branches.

(CHAIRPERSON)
DIN: 06625036

Place: Mumbai
Date: 31.08.2018
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